Call for tenders No. ENTR/09/005
“Identification of future skills needs in micro and
craft (-type) enterprises up to 2020”

Questions & Answers
(Last updated 24/07/2009)

1. According to the tender specifications, a validation workshop with approx. 100150 participants should be organized by the contractor in Brussels, with the
Commission providing the premises for this event. Apart from issues explicitly
mentioned in the specifications, are there any other specific tasks/costs related to
this event which you expect to be covered by the contractor/contract? This refers
to, for example, travel & accommodation costs of participants, catering services,
interpretation services, identifying and contacting participants, registration
management etc. These tasks/costs may have a significant budget impact.
Answer:
The tasks requested to the contractor for the validation workshop are those
specified in p. 34 of the Specifications (i.e. present the outcome of the study,
provide paper copies of the study for all participants, and draft the minutes of
the workshop). The bids should therefore include the costs related to these
tasks.
2. Are there any specific provisions foreseen as regards the budgeting of the
validation workshop (p. 31 and 38 in the technical specifications)? For example, it
is unclear whether the travel, subsistence and accommodation costs for the
workshop participants as well as other costs in relation to the workshop
organization have to be covered by the project consortium.
Answer:
See answer to previous question.
3. I would like to inquire as regards the term of "invoice" referred to in the Service
Contract (art. 1.3 - 1.4). Does this term implies incurred expenses (i.e. activities
implemented and invoiced, but yet unpaid by the contractor) or paid expenses
(incurred and paid), as this have different impacts on organisation's current
assets.
Answer:
The term “invoice” is understood as in any regular commercial relationship. In
the case of a service contract the Commission buys a service to a contractor
and does not request further information about the expenses incurred and/or
paid by the contractor to provide the service.
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The contractor carries out the assignment (i.e. produce the study) and invoices
the Commission according to the terms and conditions set up in the tendering
documents. Thus this invoice needs to be established by the contractor.
4. On p. 6 of the Tender specifications, Micro and craft (-type) enterprise, it states:
“European countries can be ‘categorized’ into different types of ‘craft countries’, following different
legal and cultural understandings of crafts. The following three groups of countries cover the main
different strands in Europe…” Is this categorization of countries based on a specific

research report (listing the categories and the respective countries)? Would it be
possible to receive this research report?
Answer:
The categories of “craft countries” mentioned in p. 6 of the Specifications are
not based on a specific research, and therefore there is no report available on
the topic. This indicative classification has been set on the basis of the
Commission’s knowledge and experience in the field.
Nevertheless, the recently published study on “Representativeness of SME
business organisations in the Member States” may be a useful source of
information.
5. On p. 16 of the Tender specification, 2.3.3. Section Five, Financial proposal, it
states: “For each category of staff to be involved in the project, the tenderer must specify:
• the total labour costs;
• the daily rates and total number of days (man-days) each member of staff will
contribute to the project;
• other categories of costs, except for the costs specified under point b) below,
indicating the nature of the cost, the total amount, the unit price and the quantity. Flatrate amounts should be avoided. If, exceptionally, they are used, specimen quotations
for the flat-rate amounts must be provided;
• Other reimbursable expenses: NOT APPLICABLE”

5.a. Concerning the third point “other categories of costs”: it refers to costs
except those mentioned under “point b)”. However, this section of the tender
document has no point b), what are the costs under point b)?
Answer:
This corresponds to an editing error. Please do not pay attention to the
phrase “except for the costs specified under point b) below”.
5.b. Where in the financial proposal should the travel costs (transportation,
accommodation and daily subsistence allowance) be included? Should these
be included as a separate item (under “Other items” in the financial proposal
format provided on p. 17) or should these costs be integrated in the daily
fees of the experts?
Answer:
Travel costs will not be reimbursed separately (see article I.3.3. of the Draft
Service Contract and point 2.3.3. of the Tendering Specifications). Travels
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expenses (including the required missions to Brussels, plus any other
mission the contractor might add in his/her proposal) can be considered
“other categories of costs” (as described in “2.3.3 Section Five”, p. 16
paragraph 9 of the Tendering Specifications).
The bidder may determine the prices for the travel expenses and include
them in the “Others” section of the template table for financial proposals (p.
17 or Tendering Specifications).
5.c. How will the travel costs be reimbursed?
Answer:
Travel and subsistence expenses will not be reimbursed separately and
should be included in the total amount of the tasks executed. See answer to
previous question.
6. Is there a minimum size and/or maximum size for the Advisory Committee that
has to be established?
Answer:
There is no minimum and/or maximum size for the Advisory Group.
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